
 
 

Date Not Specified 
 
 

Joint Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date: 
 

21 March 2019 

Time: 
 

6.30 pm 

Venue: 
 

Gordon Room, Stoke Abbott Road, Worthing 

 
 

Committee Membership:  
 
Adur District Council: Councillors; roy barraclough (Chair), Stephen Chipp (Chair), 
Keith Bickers (Vice-Chairman), Andy McGregor (Vice-Chairman), Carol Albury, 
Catherine Arnold, Kevin Boram, Joss Loader, Paul Mansfield and Lavinia O'Connor 
 
Worthing Borough Council: Councillors; Rebecca Cooper, Karen Harman, 
Charles James, Sean McDonald, Bob Smytherman and Steve Waight 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Agenda 
Part A 
 
1. Declaration of Interests   
 
 Members and officers must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests in relation 

to 
any business on the agenda. Declarations should also be made at any stage 
such 
an interest becomes apparent during the meeting. 
 
If in doubt contact the Legal or Democratic Services representative for this 
meeting. 
 

2. Substitute Members   
 

Public Document Pack



3. Confirmation of Minutes   
 
 To approve the minutes of the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting of 

held on XX XX XX, copies of which have been previously circulated. 
 

4. Public Question Time   
 
 So as to provide the best opportunity for the Committee to provide the public with 

the fullest answer, questions from the public should be submitted by 12.00pm 
Tuesday XX XX XX 
  
Where relevant notice of a question has not been given, the person presiding 
may either choose to give a response at the meeting or respond by undertaking 
to provide a written response within three working days. 
  
Questions should be submitted to Democratic Services 
democratic.services@adur-worthing.gov.uk  
 
(Note: Public Question Time will operate for a maximum of 30 minutes.) 
 

5. Items Raised Under Urgency Provisions   
 
 To consider any items the Chairman of the meeting considers to be urgent 

 
6. Consideration of any matter referred to the Committee in relation to a call-in 

of a decision   
 
7. Review of Dog Warden Service  (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
 To consider a report by the Director for Communities, copy attached as  

item 7 
 

8. Interview with the Leaders  (Pages 5 - 10) 
 
 To consider a report by the Director for Digital and Resources, copy attached as 

item 8.  
 

9. Delivering Platforms for our Places - Progress Report - July to December 
2018  (Pages 11 - 44) 

 
 To consider a report by the Director for Digital and Resources, copy attached as 

item 9. 
 

10. Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2019/20  (Pages 
45 - 58) 

 
 To consider a report ny the Director for digital and Resources, copy attached as 

item 10 
 

 
 

Recording of this meeting  
The Council will be voice recording the meeting, including public question time. The 
recording will be available on the Council’s website as soon as practicable after the 



meeting.  The Council will not be recording any discussions in Part B of the agenda 
(where the press and public have been excluded). 
 

 

For Democratic Services enquiries relating 
to this meeting please contact: 

For Legal Services enquiries relating to 
this meeting please contact: 

Chris Cadman-Dando 
email: chris.cadman-dando@adur-
worthing.gov.uk 

Joanne Lee 
Solicitor 
01903 221134 
Joanne.lee@adur-worthing.gov.uk 

 
 
Duration of the Meeting:  Four hours after the commencement of the meeting the 
Chairperson will adjourn the meeting to consider if it wishes to continue.  A vote will be 
taken and a simple majority in favour will be necessary for the meeting to continue. 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Joint Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
21 March 2019 
Agenda Item 7 

 
Key Decision [No] 

 
Ward(s) Affected: All 

 

 

A Review of the Dog Control Service  

 

Report by the Director for Communities 

 

 

Executive Summary 

 

1. Purpose  

 

1.1   Following a report considered at Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(JOSC) in July 2018 in relation to dog fouling and litter a request was made 
by JOSC  that a review of the entire Dog Control Service be conducted and 
a report be compiled.  

 
1.2   This report outlines the review of the Dog Control Service and compares 

the service delivery model with other local authorities in East and West 
Sussex and also discusses options for future service delivery for 
consideration (Appendix A). 

 

 

 

2. Recommendations 

 

2.1   The Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee is requested to note the 
performance of the Dog Control Service and the options outlined in the 
report for future service provision. 

 

  

1

Agenda Item 7



3. Context 

 

3.1 On 26 July 2018 a report entitled ‘What is the Future for littering and Dog 

Fouling control?’ was taken to JOSC Committee and at this meeting it was 

requested that a review of the entire Dog Control Service be conducted and 

a report be compiled.This report (Appendix A) covers all aspects of the Dog 

Control Service which also includes  Animal Welfare licensing activities.  

 

3.2 The report informs on the statutory duty of  local authorities to provide a Dog 

Control Service. 

 

3.3 The Inhouse Dog Control service covers a wide range of activities, a stray 

dog service, a first point of contact in dog barking complaints, dealing with 

fouling, dog aggression and a variety of other complaint types, tackling 

breaches of the Public Spaces Protection Orders, issuing Community 

Protection Notices for difficult, persistent and complex cases and the 

inspection of animal establishments that require a licence and investigating 

alleged animal welfare complaints. 

 

3.4 The report describes the breadth and depth of the service and how it 

integrates with other departments within the Councils. It outlines the benefits 

of such an inhouse service and presents options as to how future service 

delivery could look. 

  

4. Issues for consideration 

 

4.1 The Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee is requested to note the 

performance of the Dog Control Service and consider future options for 

service provision. 

 

5. Engagement and Communication 

 

5.1 Local Authorities within East and West Sussex provided details of their Dog 

Control Service Provision for comparison. 

 

6. Financial Implications 

 

6.1 The total cost of the dog warden service is: 

2



 
 

6.2 Appendix A outlines potential options for the future of the service which may 

reduce the net cost of service delivery but which will require further 

investigation. 

  

7. Legal Implications 

 

7.1 Local authorities in England have a statutory duty to collect and detain stray 

dogs under the Environmental Protection Act Section 149 and 150.  

 

7.2 The Anti-social Behaviour, Crime & Policing Act 2014 provides the power to 

Local Authorities to create Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPO) and 

issue Community Protection Notices (CPN). 

 

 

Background Papers 

Previous Reports JOSC Report 26 July 2018 Agenda Item 9 

‘What is the Future for Littering and Dog Fouling Control’ found at: 

https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/media/media,150019,en.pdf 

 

Officer Contact Details:-  

David Currie 

Team Leader Specialist Food & H&S & Dog Control 

Telephone 07968 515438 

david.currie@adur-worthing.gov.uk 

 

Sustainability & Risk Assessment 
 

3

https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/media/media,150019,en.pdf
mailto:david.currie@adur-worthing.gov.uk


 
1. Economic 

● The Dog Control Service incorporates the use of PSPO’s for Dogs and 

Community Protection Notices  and contributes to the perception of Adur and 

Worthing as safe and clean spaces to invest and spend time in. Public Space 

Protection Orders allow opportunities for engagement and low level 

intervention, often reducing the need for more resource intensive intervention. 

2. Social 

 

2.1  Social Value 

● The Dog Control Service activities have a positive impact on our communities 

who ultimately benefit from safer and cleaner spaces.  

 

2.2  Equality Issues 

● Matter considered and no issues identified. 
 
2.3 Community Safety Issues (Section 17) 

● The service utilises Community Protection Notices and Public Space Protection 
Orders, both are valuable tools in reducing anti social behaviour and promoting 
safe use of public spaces.  
 
2.4 Human Rights Issues 

● Matter considered and no issues identified. 
 

3. Environmental 
● Dog Control activities prevent misuse of our public spaces including the green 

spaces and foreshores by irresponsible dog owners.  
 

4. Governance 
● Dog Control and Animal Welfare Activities promote a good reputation of our 

Council among our communities by reducing anti social behaviour within our 
public spaces. 

4



 

 

Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
21 March 2019 
Agenda Item 8 

 
Key Decision [No] 

 
Ward(s) Affected: N/A 

 

 

Joint Leaders interview   

 

Report by the Director for Digital and Resources 

 

Executive Summary 

 

1. Purpose  

 
1.1 This report sets out background information on the Portfolios of the Adur and 
Worthing Leaders to enable the Committee to consider and question the Leaders 
on issues within their portfolios and any high level strategic issues which the 
Leaders are involved in connected with the work of the Councils and the Adur and 
Worthing communities.  

 

 

2. Recommendations 

 

2.1 That the Committee consider any representations from the Leaders on    

the work within their Portfolios and other high level strategic issues which 

the Leaders are involved in and question the Leaders on this and 

recommend any suggested action or make appropriate comments to the 

Leaders for their consideration.  

 

 

  

5

Agenda Item 8



3.  Context 

 

3.1 As part of its Work Programme for 2018/19, the Joint Overview and Scrutiny  

Committee (JOSC) have agreed to interview the Leaders on their priorities for  

2018/19 on 20 September 2018 and 21 March 2019.  

 

3.2  As part of their fact finding/investigative role, the Joint Overview and Scrutiny  

Committee are asked to consider the roles and responsibilities of the Leaders.  

It is part of the Scrutiny role to fact find/investigate in the form of questions 

and JOSC is asked to direct questions to the Leaders on any high  

level strategic issues involving the Leaders and also issues relating to their  

portfolios, however, this will not extend to day to day Council matters.  

  
3.3  The Committee are entitled to ask for further investigation into items where  

they may not be satisfied with the progress as described. 

 

4. Issues for consideration 

 

4.1  Both Leaders have responsibility for the following:- 
 

● Overall policy and strategy (Vision and priorities); 
● External relations, including complaints management, marketing and 

promotion; 
● Reputation management, including risk (policy); 
● Performance management, including improvement plans; 
● Media and communications (internal and external) 
● Democratic Services including committee management  
● Electoral Services within the remit of the Executive 
● Member Services 
● Chairman of the Council and Civic matters (Adur) 
● Mayor of the Borough and Civic matters (Worthing) 
● Partnership working (Lead) 
● Public consultation, including community engagement and citizens Panels 
● Greater Brighton Economic Board (Strategic matters) 
● Devolution 
● Energy management and sustainability.    

 
4.2 JOSC is requested to ask questions of the two Leaders based on their  

functions as outlined in paragraph 4.1 of the report above including any high 
level strategic issues which the Leaders are involved in connected with the work 
of the Councils and the Adur and Worthing communities.  

 
 

 

 

 

5. Engagement and Communication 

6



 

5.1 The JOSC Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen have been consulted on the  

proposals contained in this report.  

 

6. Financial Implications 

 

6.1  There are no direct financial implications to consider within this report. 

 
7. Legal Implications 

 

7.1  JOSC is responsible for holding the Executive Members to account, reviewing  

their work and decisions and in accordance with the procedures outlined  

within the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules set out in the  

Councils’ constitution, can request Executive Members to attend its meetings. 

 

7.2 Section 3(1) of the Local Government Act 1999 (LGA 1999) contains a 

general duty on a best value authority to make arrangements to secure 

continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having 

regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

 

7.3 Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 empowers the Council to do anything 

an individual can do apart from that which is specifically prohibited by pre-

existing legislation. 

 

 

 

 

 
Background Papers 

 

None. 

 

Officer Contact Details:-  

Mark Lowe 

Scrutiny and Risk Officer 

Tel:01903 221009 

mark.lowe@adur-worthing.gov.uk 

 

 

 
Leaders 
Adur District Council 
Councillor Neil Parkin 
E-mail:neil.parkin@adur.gov.uk  

7

mailto:mark.lowe@adur-worthing.gov.uk


 
Worthing Borough Council  
Councillor Daniel Humphreys  
E-mail: daniel.humphreys@worthing.gov.uk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sustainability & Risk Assessment 

 
1. Economic 

8



 

 Matter considered and no direct issues identified but some issues contained  

within the Leader Portfolios are related to economic issues and impact. 

 

2. Social 

  

2.1  Social Value 

 

 Matter considered and no direct issues identified but some issues within the  

Leader Portfolios do impact on the communities.  

 

2.2  Equality Issues 

 
 Matter considered and no direct issues identified but some of the Portfolio  

areas do impact on access or participation.  

 
2.3 Community Safety Issues (Section 17) 
 
 Matter considered and no direct issues identified.  
 
2.4 Human Rights Issues 

 
 Matter considered and no direct issues identified.  
 
3.  Environmental 
 
 Matter considered and no direct issues identified. 
  
4.  Governance 

 
 Matter considered and no direct issues identified.   

 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
21 March 2019 
Agenda Item 9 

 
Key Decision [No] 

 
Ward(s) Affected: N/A 

 

 

Delivering Platforms for our Places - Progress report - July to December 2018   

 

Report by the Director for Digital and Resources  

 

Executive Summary 

 

1. Purpose  

 
1.1 To provide the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JOSC) with an 
overview of progress on the delivery of the  commitments set out in ‘Platforms for 
our Places’ over the period July to December 2018.    
 
1.2 To assist JOSC in questioning the Chief Executive and Executive Members on 
the progress in delivering the commitments and activities in Platforms for our 
Places.  

 

 

2. Recommendations 

 

2.1 That JOSC note the progress in delivering the commitments and 

activities in Platforms for our Places and question the Chief Executive and 

Executive Members on this.  

 

2.2 That further progress reports be requested to be presented to JOSC in 

September 2019 and March 2020 as part of the Work Programme.  

 

 

  

11

Agenda Item 9



3. Context 

 

3.1 As part of its Work Programme for 2018/19 JOSC has agreed to review the 

progress in delivering the commitments and activities in Platforms for our Places in 

September 2018 and March 2019 and also question the Chief Executive and 

Executive Members on the progress.  

 

4. Issues for consideration 

 

4.1 JOSC is asked to consider the progress in delivering the activities in Platforms for 

our Places, details of which are set out in the copy of the report attached as the 

appendix to this report which was presented to the Joint Strategic Committee on 31 

January 2019.  

 

5. Engagement and Communication 

 

5.1 The Joint Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of JOSC have been consulted on the 

proposals contained in this report.  

 

6. Financial Implications 

 

6.1 There are some financial implications arising from the overall Platforms for our 

Places document which are covered under the overall budget process.  

 

7. Legal Implications 

 

7.1 Under Section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Councils have the power 

to do anything to facilitate or which is conducive or incidental to the discharge of any 

of their functions. 

 

7.2 Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 provides a Local Authority to do anything that 

individuals generally may do (subject to any current restrictions or limitations 

prescribed in existing legislation). 

 

7.3 Section 3(1) of the Local Government Act 1999 (LGA 1999) contains a general 

duty on a Best Value Authority to make continuous improvement in the way in which 

its functions are exercised having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness.  

 

 

 
Background Papers 

 

12



Platforms for our Places (adopted by Adur District Council 15 December 2016 

and adopted by Worthing Borough Council 20 December 2016. 

Platforms for our Places six month progress report to Joint Strategic Committee - 31 

January 2019 

Mid Term review and refresh of Platforms for our Places commitments - July 2018 

 

 

 

 

Officer Contact Details:-  

 

Mark Lowe 

Scrutiny and Risk Officer 

Tel: 01903 221009 

mark.lowe@adur-worthing.gov.uk 

 

 

 

  

13



Sustainability & Risk Assessment 
 

1. Economic 
 

 Developing our financial economies is one of five Platforms for development  

in Platforms for our Places. The progress report attached as the appendix to 

this report provides an overview and highlights on how the Councils are 

working to develop this Platform.  

 

2. Social Value 

 

2.1.1 Developing our social economies is one of five platforms for development in  

Platforms for our Places. The progress report attached to this report provides  

an overview and highlights on how the Councils are working to develop this  

platform.   

 

2.2  Equality Issues 

 

2.2.1 Through Platforms for our Places, the objective is to build the capacity of our  

communities and engage with them to find solutions and ensure our services  
are designed to respond and meet their needs.  
 
2.3 Community Safety Issues (Section 17) 
 
2.3.1 There are specific commitments in Platforms for our Places which relate 
to the promotion of our communities as safe places.  
 
2.4 Human Rights Issues 

 
2.4.1 Through the implementation of Platforms for our Places the Councils are  

seeking solutions with our partners to enable our residents, communities and  
places to thrive.  

 
3.  Environmental 
 
3.1 Developing the Councils and communities role in stewarding our natural  

resources is one of five platforms for development in Platforms for our Places.  
The copy report from the Joint Strategic Committee 31 January 2019 attached 

 to this report provides an overview and highlights on how the Councils are  
working to develop this platform.    

 
4.  Governance 
 
4.1 This report provides the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee with an  

overview of the progress being made to implement Platforms for our Places,  
the Councils’ three-year plan to enable our places to thrive.   

 
4.2 The presentation of this report to the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

14



ensures that officers are accountable in delivering elected Member’s  
ambitions for our places.  
 

4.3  Working with local and sub-regional partners is a critical element in delivering  
Platforms for our Places. It will remain an important area of focus for Officers. 

15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Joint Strategic Committee 
31 January 2019 

Agenda Item 5 

Key Decision: No 

Ward(s) Affected: All 

Platforms for our Places Progress Report (July to December 2018)  

Report by the Chief Executive 

Executive Summary  

1. Purpose  

1.1 To provide Joint Strategic Committee an update on the Councils’ 
progress in delivering the ambitions and commitments set out in 
Platforms for our Places ​for the period July to December 2018, and 
highlight areas of strategic importance. 

 
1.2  All of the commitments adopted by both Councils originally in January 

2017 (and then refreshed in July 2018) are progressing.  One is 
complete, 72% of activities are on track (green) and 27% are at potential 
risk (amber). 

 
1.3 The report provides the opportunity for JSC to report to both Full 

Councils and Joint Overview & Scrutiny Committee on progress.  

 

2. Recommendations 

2.1 Note the progress made and challenges experienced in the 
implementation of ​Platforms for our Places​ over the period July to 
December 2018.  

2.2 Request a further update report in July 2019 detailing progress over the 
next 6 month period. 

2.3 Agree to refer this report to Joint Overview & Scrutiny Committee for 
their consideration.  

17



3. Context 

3.1 In December 2016 Adur & Worthing Councils adopted “ ​Platforms for our 
Places”​ as the Councils’ direction of travel for the next 3 years.    In July 
2018 (18 months into that programme) both Councils adopted a revised 
set of commitments and activities to reflect the progress that had been 
made and the issues that had emerged over the first half of the 
programme.  
 

3.2 Platforms for our Places ​builds on the need to explore and reset our 
relationship with our residents, recognising as Councils we cannot and 
should not do everything for everyone. Our role as Councils (as well as 
providing great services and vital safety nets) is to create and maintain 
five essential platforms upon which our communities can build happy, 
healthy, prosperous and connected places. 
 

3.3 ​Platforms for our Places​ identifies five platforms underpinned by a series 
of commitments namely:  

a) Our Financial Economies  
b) Our Social Economies  
c) Stewarding our Natural Resources  
d) Services and Solutions for our Places  
e) Leadership of our Places 

 

Platform Commitments Activities and Projects 

Our Financial Economies 11 46 

Our Social Economies 8 31 

Stewarding our Natural 
Resources 

7 21 

Services and Solutions 5 18 

Leadership of our Places 7 30 

Total 38 146 

Table 3.1: Five Platforms and associated commitments, activities and projects 

 
 

18



3.4 Progress reporting draws on the progress of the 146 projects and activities 
and the Councils broader activities to provide a snapshot of how the 
Councils are contributing to the development of the five identified 
platforms. Table 3.2 outlines how the status of projects and activities are 
determined. 
 

Status Indicators Status Definition 

Blue Completed. 

Green In progress: on track and on time. 

Amber In progress : but delays anticipated or minor 
issues to be resolved (no apparent “show 
stoppers” identified) 

Red Significant difficulties in implementation.  

Grey Yet to start 

 Table 3.2 Status indicators and definitions 
 
3.5 All previous 6-monthly update reports to Joint Strategic Committee have 

also been considered by Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JOSC). 
JOSC has commented in the past that the analysis by platform was helpful 
and asked for a particular highlight on any “red” commitments. 

 
4. Issues for consideration 

4.1 The progress report (Attachment A) provides an overview of the main 
highlights, challenges and future focus in the development of the five 
platforms over the last 6 months.  The progress report also provides an 
overview of the current status of Platform commitments in pie chart form. 
The table below seeks to set out in numerical form progress against each 
of the Platforms.  It is perhaps worth remembering that this is not an exact 
science but a reasonably objective analysis of how a wide variety of 
projects and activities are progressing.  It is always possible to have 
debate about “how green” or “how amber” any particular project is but as 
an overall assessment gives a reasonably robust view of our progress.  

 
 
 
 
 

19



Platform On Track Potential Risk Complete 

Our Financial 
Economies 

23 (50%) 22 (48%) 1 (2%) 

Our Social 
Economies 

24 (77%) 7 (23%)  

Stewarding our 
Natural 
Resources 

17 (81%)  4 (19%)  

Services and 
Solutions 

14 (78%)  4 (22%)  

Leadership of 
our Places 

27 (90%) 3 (10%)  

Total 105 (72%) 40 (27%) 1 (0.01%) 

Table 4.1: Status of Commitments by Platform 
 
4.2 It is also perhaps worth remembering that these 140 or so commitments 

are not “everything we do”, far from it.   Whilst progressing our Platforms 
agenda we have continued to provide a full portfolio of universal services 
to the communities we serve.  At times this has been challenging 
particularly in some of those demand led areas where we have seen 
increase in need, without a consequent increase in supply of resource 
either in terms of finance or assets (e.g. new housing).  
 

4.3 It is not intended in this covering report to comment on each and every 
issue flagged in ​Attachment A ​.  There are, however, certain strategic 
themes that can be drawn from the past 6 months that are probably 
worthy of drawing to the attention of the Committee.  These are:- 
 

4.4     ​Housing (supply and demand)​:- 

4.4.1  The lack of balance between the supply and demand sides of housing 
need is well known (particularly in the South East of England).  This 
macro-economic position requires the Councils to engage with partners 
to support development of new housing, provide social, emergency and 
temporary accommodation and support those who are experiencing 
homelessness including rough sleepers.  Critically preventing people 
losing secure accommodation (i.e. preventing homelessness) is vital 

20



work to prevent the fracturing of families and communities and to 
reduce financial burden on council tax payers. 

 
4.4.2 In the six month period our planning committees have considered a 

number of planning applications seeking to develop new homes.  Over 
1,000 new homes have been approved at New Monks Farm and Free 
Wharf in Adur.  We are seeing progress tangibly being made on the 
Bayside development on Worthing seafront and have a strong 
partnership in place with London & Continental Railways to develop 
Union Place.  We anticipate an imminent planning application at Teville 
Gate in Worthing and a range of preparatory work is underway in order 
to bring the old Adur Civic Centre site to market and create a viable and 
investable proposition for the Grafton car park site.  In areas such as 
ours (where the availability of new developable land is so constrained) 
each and every planning application is important, particularly so where 
they generate a sizable number of new homes.  

 
4.4.3 We continue to make progress on maintaining and developing Adur 

Homes stock.  We launched an Adur Homes digital repairs tool to allow 
self reporting.  The initial roll out has been well received and (as with 
any digital tool) we continue to seek to develop and improve the offer. 
We are working to dovetail our capital maintenance programme with 
our wider development ambitions for Adur Homes.  Adur Members will 
be aware of the planning approval of 44 homes at Albion Street 
(including 15 new homes for the Adur Housing Revenue Account).  We 
anticipate demolition and build work will begin early in 2019 and 
progress continues on developing Cecil Norris House. 
 

4.4.4 Over the six month period we have continued to see an increase in 
those reporting as homeless.  If people in difficulty come to our 
attention early enough we pro-actively work to prevent them becoming 
homeless.  Our staff positively prevented homelessness in more than 
90 of those cases presenting over the last six months.  That being said 
our need for Emergency Accommodation (EA) remains, though 
encouragingly the rate at which we are now placing people in EA has 
stabilised as our preventative work takes effect.  It is more cost effective 
(and less socially damaging) for us to secure suitable EA by arranging 
leases and purchasing property either in or close to Adur and Worthing 
and several recent acquisitions have helped grow our supply of EA.  

 
4.4.5 Worthing Borough Council was successful in bidding for more than 

£340,000 to support rough sleepers across our communities for a 

21



project until the spring of 2020. Our 18/19 rough sleepers street actual 
count was 11 in Worthing (down from 19 in 2017).  The estimated 
number of rough sleepers in the town is more likely to be 23 (compared 
to 34 last year). Whist a reduction is welcome we recognise rough 
sleeping remains a concern and obvious presences within Worthing 
Town Centre are of particular concern to business.  We continue to 
work hard and collaboratively with a range of partners to provide the 
solutions we can and where possible reduce the challenge and tensions 
that can be created.  

 
4.5 Our town centres​:- 

4.5.1 Members will be aware that the last six months have seen significant 
challenges for Britain's high streets.  What has been described as a 
“toxic mix” of consumers being financially stretched, heavy discounting 
and online retailers having cheaper business models than those with 
presence on the high street, are all beginning to take effect.  This will be 
a particular focus of attention over the medium term, particularly so if 
macro-economic indicators start to turn the wrong way.  In both Adur 
and Worthing the Councils are determined to work hard with a range of 
partners to ensure vibrant economic and social hubs are maintained 
and developed.  

 
4.5.2 In Adur our markets go from strength to strength, receiving exceptional 

feedback from general public, traders and business partners.  Heavy 
online promotion has helped to encourage footfall.  The Councils have 
supported a number of events in the District, having sought to bring 
people into the centre of our towns for a range of cultural activities.  

 
4.5.3 In Worthing we are seeing progress on the development of major sites 

in the town centre and are using the key plays of development of a 
strong cultural offer, an enhanced and improved public realm and 
seafront, a smarter use of parking assets, new visitor attractions and 
where appropriate support new housing developments in unviable 
ex-retail accommodation. 
 

4.6 Sustainable stewardship of our natural resources​:- 
 
4.6.1 When both Councils refreshed the Commitments in July 2018 this 

provided an opportunity to considerably develop the next stage in 
Platform 3 (Stewarding our Natural Resources).  Over the subsequent 
six month period the Councils have stepped up our leadership role in 

22



this area.  Having created and agreed a sustainability framework there 
are a strong raft of activities and projects in place or underway shortly 
(many of which are community based).  What is encouraging is that in 
many areas our communities are happy to lead and the role that we 
take then becomes a genuinely supporting platform partner.  . 

 
4.7 Mobilising our resources behind the agenda​:- 

4.7.1 Evidently we have less financial resources at our disposal than in the 
past.  These are not Councils that have embarked upon wide spread 
“close downs” of services or seeking to reduce expenditure to the point 
where viability of services is fundamentally challenged.  Members are 
aware that our approach broadly has been to reduce our cost base on 
an ongoing basis; look for new income streams, use digital and service 
design to create a better and more cost effective service offer and 
actively seek external public and private sector investment to projects 
and services that we wish to deliver.  Whilst we have had reasonable 
success in this strategy over the last 2-3 years it perhaps goes without 
saying that every year it becomes a little more difficult.  That does mean 
that a focus upon wise use of the resources we have available is 
essential. 

 
4.7.2 Over the past six months we have sought to develop our commercial 

capacity with a particular focus on our waste services.  This is about 
looking at existing product lines and markets and seeing whether there 
are opportunities that we have currently missed.  It is not as crude and 
simplistic as just “turning up the dial” on everything until we lose 
customers.  The learning from this work will be used to develop other 
commercial service across the Councils. We have utilised our digital 
platforms to improve and understand customers experience of our 
commercial services and develop new marketing strategies. We have 
recognised the need for commercial coaching for managers and finance 
business partners to ensure they have the acumen to identify 
opportunities, access risks and manage any new services we wish to 
deliver on a commercial basis into the future. 

 
4.7.3 The decisions Members made three years ago to invest in the digital 

platform are paying dividends.  Data collected from the platforms has 
been a key component in improving services (including for example the 
rolling out of the Adur Homes repairs app and the Revenue & Benefits 
team launching online accounts and e-billing).  Further exploring 
automation and self service (but not exclusively) will be important.  

23



 
4.7.4 The Councils are shortly implementing the ​ “Effortless”​ customer service 

approach with a significant piece of change work across our customer 
service teams.  We will enhance our website to enable much better 
digital self service and make information easier to access. Detailed 
analysis of how customer contacts are managed, explored and 
improved (with several new contact channels) will be undertaken in the 
first 6 months of the year.  
 

4.7.5 And whilst it’s been said many times before, our people matter.  I, and 
your Director team, continue to be impressed by the ambition, 
dedication, care and commitment that our staff have towards the 
people, communities and the places that we serve.  We recognise that 
some of the rather “clunky” ways that we manage “human resources” 
do not enable good people to have the freedom to run services 
required.  Therefore a range of activity is underway from reviewing HR 
policies, to skilling managers and leaders in developmental 
conversations, to new induction approaches and the use of the digital 
platform to improve workforce planning, leave management and staff 
data.  We have also recently launched the Well@work initiative to 
support staff wellbeing across the Councils.  

 
4.7.6 In November 2018 we invited the Local Government Association Peer 

Review Team to look at our strategic financial management 
approaches.  Their findings and recommendations have been 
welcomed and work is already underway to strengthen our positions in 
several key areas. 

 
4.8 Dealing with uncertainties​:- 

4.8.1 Like many Local Authorities in the UK, Adur and Worthing work in, and 
have been adaptive to, uncertain, rapidly changing and complex 
environments.  Whether that’s Central Government policy, partner’s 
financial positions, economic uncertainty or the rapid pace of 
technological change if we are not alive to our environments we are in 
danger of being overwhelmed by them.  

 
4.8.2 There has understandably been much local interest in various decisions 

taken by West Sussex County Council in relation to their budget and 
the impact that may have on people in our areas.  Our approach has 
been to advocate on behalf of our communities and their needs.  At 
times that means being a robust critical friend to County colleagues 

24



whilst recognising that ultimately those decisions are for the County 
Council to make.  Whilst your officers might wish it were otherwise, 
there are some real live challenges that we need to rise to and we are 
clear that sitting back and waiting for something to happen is not the 
best approach.  Across a range of issues your officers are involved in 
leading or helping to shape issues at a County wide level, seeking to 
work in the best interests of Adur and Worthing as well as the County 
as a whole. 
 

4.9 Looking to the future​:- 

2019 will mark the final year of the current ​Platforms for our Places​. 
Work is expected to begin on evaluating, research,assessing and 
opportunities and areas of focus for the Councils to support our 
communities and places to thrive into the next decade.  

 
5. Engagement and Communication 

5.1  As outlined in the progress report (Attachment A) engagement with our 
communities and partners is critical to realise our objectives and deliver 
the individual commitments outlined in ​Platforms for our Places​.  It 
remains an important area of focus for officers as we move into the final 
year of the programme.  

 
6. Financial Implications 

6.1 There are no unbudgeted financial implications in this report. Specific 
commitments that have capital or revenue consequences are individually 
assessed as part of the decision making process. The setting of a draft 
budget for both Councils for 2019/20 has been undertaken with the 
Platforms for our Places ​commitments in mind, as will be seen from a 
variety of reports to JSC in the near future are consistent with the revenue 
budget and capital strategies. 

 
 
7. Legal Implications 

7.1 There are no specific legal implications relevant to this report.  The legal 
implications relevant to any individual commitment are reported in the 
usual decision making process.  
 

 
 

25



 
Background Papers 

● Mid-Term Review and Refresh of Platforms for our Places Commitments  
-  adopted by Adur District Council - 19 July 2018; adopted by  
Worthing Borough Council - 17 July 2018  

● Platforms for our Places: 6 month Progress Report (January to June 2018)  
- Joint Strategic Committee (Item 5) - 10 July 2018 

● Delivering​ ​Platforms​ ​for​ ​our​ ​Places​:​ ​Progress​ ​Report​ ​June​ ​-​ ​December​ ​2017  
- Joint Strategic Committee (Item 5) - 9th January 2018 

● Delivering ​ Platforms for our Places​: Mid-Year Report 2017 ​ and ​Appendix   
- Joint Strategic Report - 11 July 2017 (Item 5) 

● “Platforms for our Places” unlocking the power of people, communities and 
our local geographies​ - ​ adopted by Adur District Council  
- 15 December 2016; adopted by Worthing Borough Council  
- 20 December 2016 
 

 
Officer Contact Details 
Alan Higgins, Chief Executive’s Policy Officer  
01903 221003 ​alan.higgins@adur-worthing.gov.uk 
 
Alex Bailey, Chief Executive  
01903 221001 alex.bailey@adur-worthing.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

26

https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/media/media,149796,en.pdf
https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/media/media,149795,en.pdf
https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/media/media,147276,en.pdf
https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/media/media,145063,en.pdf
https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/media/media,145063,en.pdf
https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/media/media,145063,en.pdf
https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/media/media,145064,en.pdf
https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/media/media,142449,en.pdf
https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/media/media,142449,en.pdf
mailto:alan.higgins@adur-worthing.gov.uk


Sustainability & Risk Assessment 
 
1. Economic 

1.1     Delivering our financial economies is one of 5 Platforms for development in 
Platforms for our Places​.  The progress report (Attachment A) provides an 
overview and highlights on how the Councils are working to develop this 
Platform.  

 
2. Social 

2.1 Social Value 
2.1.1   Developing our Social Economies is one of five Platforms for development 

in​ Platforms for our Places. ​  The progress report (Attachment A) provides 
an overview and highlights on how the Councils are working to develop 
this Platform.  
 

2.1.2 A particular focus on several elements of ​Platforms for our Places​ is how 
to build capacity within our communities and community partners to 
enable them to shape and lead our places, while at the same time 
ensuring the Councils provide a robust “safety net” for vulnerable 
members of our communities.  

 
2.2 Equality Issues 
2.2.1 Platforms for our Places​ objectives include building the capacity of our 

communities, engaging with them to find solutions that ensure that our 
services (and interventions) are designed to meet specific needs and 
address areas and issues of historic disadvantage.  

 
2.3   ​Community Safety Issues​ (Section 17) 
2.3.1 There are specific commitments in ​Platforms for our Places ​which relate to            

the promotion of communities as safe places. Delivery of these          
commitments are in progress.  

 
2.4​     ​Human Rights Issues 
2.4.1 Through the implementation of ​Platforms for our Places ​the Councils are           

seeking solutions with other partners to enable our residents, communities          
and places to thrive.  

 
3.   Environmental 

3.1 Developing the Councils and communities role in stewarding our natural          
resources is one of five platforms for development in ​Platform for our            
Places. ​The progress report (Attachment A) provides an overview and          
highlights how on how the Councils are working to develop this platform.   

 
 
 

27



4.   Governance 
4.1 This report provides Joint Strategic Committee an overview of the          

progress being made to implement ​Platforms for our Places, ​the Councils’           
three-year plan to enable our places to thrive.  

 
4.2 The presentation of this report and proposed recommendations to refer it           

to Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee ensure that officers are          
accountable in delivering elected members’ ambitions for our places.  

 
4.3 Working with local and sub-regional partners is a critical element in           

delivering ​Platforms for our Places. ​It will remain an important area of            
focus for Officers. 

28



 

Commitment Activities Tracker 

 
 
   

Overview : last 6 months  
The Councils have made significant steps forward on our Financial Economies 
commitments over the past 6 months.  A complex and at times contentious planning 
application for 600 new homes and an IKEA store with 495 new jobs at New Monks 
Farm, Lancing was determined in November 2018.  

In Shoreham, funding was secured via Homes England to support commencement of 
the Free Wharf project delivering 550 homes as part of the Shoreham Harbour 
Quarter.   
 
In Worthing, a partnership was formalised with London & Continental Railways to 
develop Union Place (and potentially other sites) and real progress on a planning 
application for Teville Gate was made under the terms of a Planning Performance 
Agreement.  

A Car Parking Strategy was adopted for Worthing which will see significant 
improvements at the multi-storey facilities and potentially, two new car parks. The 
procurement process for an operator to enhance and develop cultural services for 
Worthing reached an advanced stage.  Further progress has been made on 
implementing our agreed Property Investment Strategy with several significant 
purchases completed.   

Two key schemes for our places are in the build phase and now ‘above foundations’ – 
Bayside on the site of the former Aquarena in Worthing; and Ropetackle North in 
Adur – we have “cranes on the skylines”.  The new office development designed and 
built on the site of the former Civic Centre car park in Shoreham has reached the 

 
July - December 2018 Progress Report  

 
 

29



 
halfway stage in construction.  A potential new seafront attraction was identified for 
Worthing Seafront in the form of a big wheel to be located between the Pier and the 
Lido. 
 
And parts of our financial economies have begun to see the impact of 
macro-economic uncertainty, perhaps most notably retail.  Inward investment is 
becoming harder to attract and government funds (e.g via the LEP) in something of a 
hiatus.   

Platform Highlights : last 6 months 
1. Significant movement on major sites​; the new 24,000 square feet office 

development pre-let to a local business (Focus) is under construction and 
reaching an advanced stage: it will be completed in May 2019.  Planning 
permission was secured for the development of 600 new homes and an IKEA 
store in Lancing.  Under the terms of a Planning performance Agreement, 
much of the design work necessary for submission of a planning application 
for Teville Gate has been completed.  A formal agreement has been signed 
with London & Continental Railways to progress development at Union 
Place.  Work commenced on redevelopment of the former Luxor Cinema in 
Lancing and the Sunbeam residential development scheme in South Street 
Lancing reached advanced stage.  Decoy Farm took a significant step forward 
with the completion of feasibility work that will inform preparation of an 
outline planning application designed to promote interest among potential 
developers. 

2. A new Plan for Worthing​; Preparation of a new Local Plan for Worthing 
took a step forward over the past six months with the completion of the 
‘issues and options’ stage.   

3. A vibrant cultural offer​;  A procurement exercise to select a provider to 
further develop the cultural offer for Worthing got underway and is due for 
completion in Jan/Feb 2019.  Ticket sales in venues have again been good and 
this year’s Panto has exceeded last year’s record.  Over the past six months 
over 150,000 people attended events at the theatres. The Connaught Studio 
won a best Independent Cinema Award; the Museum OPEN18 Exhibition 
attracted a record number of entries and work began on a long term 
masterplan for the Pavilion Theatre.   

4. Public Realm and Seafront​; Detailed design work was undertaken on two 
schemes as part of a wider programme of public realm improvements. 
Schemes for Portland Road and South Street will be taken forward for 
consultation and delivery.  A successful tender process has seen a preferred 
operator identified for a ‘big wheel’ to be located on Worthing Seafront.  

5. Our visitor and creative economies​: following a new arrangement with 
Sussex Film Office our places have seen a significant rise in interest for 
filming.  Over the period film, TV and magazine film shoots took place 19 
occasions (unprecedented).  Colonnade House continues to be a real success 
with the exhibition space 100% occupied throughout the year and occupation 
rates for creative and artistic businesses running at 95%. 

 
July - December 2018 Progress Report  

 
 

30



 

Challenges 
1. Our evolving high streets: ​It will continue to be important to monitor                       

trading conditions nationally and locally to ensure that we remain an                     
attractive proposition for investment and that we are doing all we can to                         
support the future of our high streets.   

2. Planning and Development: ​We will hear whether the secretary of State                     
is likely to ‘call in’ the New Monk’s Farm planning application. 

3. Inward Investment : Conditions in some investment markets appear to be                     
changing. Both Adur and Worthing have had real success in attracting                     
(particularly) government funds in over the last few years. Central                   
Government and several of its agencies have less funds or are uncertain as to                           
their approach until Brexit issues are determined. The Councils will consider                     
all opportunities to ensure a helpful flow of investment capital continues. 
 
Future Focuses 

1. Worthing Local Plan: ​The representations on the Worthing Local Plan 
will be reviewed over the next six months and evidence gathered to ensure 
that the emergent Plan is sound..  The Open Space, Sport and Recreation 
Study will be developed and work will begin on a review of the Community 
Infrastructure Levy.  

2. The future of Worthing’s cultural offer: ​The procurement exercise to 
select a preferred operator for the theatres and Museum will be completed 

and a contract awarded.   

3. Enhancing Worthing’s Town Centre and Seafront:​ Public consultation 
will take place on the Portland Road and South Street public realm schemes. 
Several planning applications are expected to be considered: 

○ the new big wheel on Worthing seafront (and should this be realised 
the Wheel will be erected in April).  

○ the Bistrot Pierre restaurant on the seafront and a new tenant for 
the East buildings will be announced.  

○ Teville Gate. Review, analysis and determination of a planning 
application.  

4. Implementing the Worthing Parking Strategy:​ A plan for bringing 
forward redevelopment of the Grafton multi-storey car park will be 
considered early in the year; and work will begin on the refurbishment of 
Buckingham multi-storey car park. 

5. Engaging our Business Community: ​The review of the Adur & 
Worthing Business Partnership having been completed various 
recommendations to be implemented.   

6. Creating Space for Business: ​The new office for Focus at the former 
Adur Civic Centre will be completed in May 2019. Work to prepare a 
planning application for Decoy Farm will get underway and a marketing 
strategy prepared for this important site. 

 
July - December 2018 Progress Report  

 
 

31



32



 

Commitment Activities Tracker 
 
 
 

 

 
   

Overview : last 6 months 
Housing continues to be a significant focus for both Councils as we seek to support 
those at risk of becoming homeless, work with providers and landlords to increase 
the availability of affordable housing and focus on our ambitions (in Adur) as a 
Landlord to provide better services for our tenants.  The Homelessness Reduction 
Act was implemented in April and between July and November we saw more than 
300 people/families using this new framework.   

We are drawing upon learning from our “Preventing Homelessness” project to 
support preventative ways of working that enable resilience and build capacity in our 
communities.  We have launched two new major projects. The first (supported 
financially by WSCC and the CCG) is focussed on how we can support health and 
wellbeing by reducing loneliness and social isolation at all ages, the second (supported 
by the Design Council and the LGA) is seeking to understand how we can support 
those in temporary accommodation and in receipt of universal credit, to be matched 
with employers in our local economy.   Our ambitions are to create the conditions 
that enable our communities to Thrive at all stages of their lifecycle.  

Platform Highlights : last 6 months 

1. Supporting Rough Sleepers: ​In September 2018, Worthing Borough 
Council was successful in bidding for more than £340,000 to support rough 
sleepers across our communities until the spring of 2020. Our 2018/19 rough 
sleepers street actual count (a snapshot) was 11 in Worthing (down from 19 
in 2017).  The estimated number of rough sleepers in the town (based on a 
variety of data) is 23 compared to 34 last year.  In Adur no rough sleepers 
were counted during street count for 2018/19, with an estimate of one, 
whilst in 2017/18 there were no rough sleepers counted with an estimate of 
two.  

 
July - December 2018 Progress Report  

 
 

33



 
 

2. Preventing Homelessness: ​Over the last 6 months we have focused 
closely on relieving and preventing homelessness. We have positively 
prevented homelessness for more than 90 of the people/families who have 
presented to our team.   Our need for emergency accommodation (EA) 
remains high, however the rate at which we are placing people in EA appears 
to have stabilised as we see the results of our preventative work taking 
effect.  We are also continuing to secure suitable, more affordable EA by 
leasing and purchasing property for this purpose. 

3. Developing the Adur Homes Stock: ​The Adur Homes repairs digital 
tool went live this autumn and we are seeing a gradual increase in the 
number of repairs being reported this way. Satisfaction levels with the service 
are improving and this will continue to be an area of focus.  The planning 
application to build 44 new homes at Albion Street, 15 of which will be for 
the HRA was approved and work is due to start in January 2019.  

4. Adapting for Accessible Homes: ​We have fully implemented the Interim 
Discretionary Disabled Facility Grant policy approved by the Councils in 
December 2017. This has resulted in an increased spend on adaptations 
across Adur & Worthing with a predicted commitment and spend of £2.17 
million during 2018/19.   

5. Supporting our Communities to Commemorate: ​For the Centenary 
of World War 1, we coordinated a significant number of Remembrance 
Service events and parades across Adur and Worthing, recognising the 
sacrifice made by many former residents.  

6. Improving Community Transport: ​Our Community Transport Offer 
was reviewed and a new grants programme established with a key benefit 
being the collaboration of organisations to maximise value.  

7. Social Prescribing: ​We have secured additional funding for ‘Going Local’ in 
Adur (and across our current patch) and to date more than 1,200 people 
have been supported by the service.  

8. Supporting Vulnerable members of our Community: ​We successfully 
bid for £406,000 funding to increase the domestic violence provision in West 
Sussex, with our Lead for Early Help and Wellbeing co-ordinating this work. 
These funds will provide valuable outreach services, outreach in rural areas 
and a specialist worker to support BME communities. 

9. Improving our Community’s Health: ​Between July & Sept 2018 we 
supported more than 400 clients via our Wellbeing Hubs Core Service other 
in house programmes as part of our Public Health Programme.  We have 
recently bid for funding to deliver a new programme aimed at reducing 
childhood obesity in partnership with WSCC and our Leisure Providers and 
await the outcome of that bid.  

 
Challenges 

1. Increasing the supply of homes for our Community: ​Housing need will 
continue to be a challenge given that Adur and Worthing are places with 
limited land availability and high demand, compared to the supply of all types 
of property. The development of the Worthing Local Plan presents an 
opportunity to re-evaluate our approach. 
 

 
July - December 2018 Progress Report  

 
 

34



 
2. Constraints of Strategic Partners: ​The financial constraints of several 

strategic partners, and the policy choices they make, can provide real and 
concrete challenges.  As budgetary decisions are finalised in the new year the 
full impact will become clearer. In the meantime we seek to work 
constructively with all partners to ensure vulnerable members of our 
community are supported, and that essential provider organisations and 
partners remain close to solutions.  
 

3. Ageing Adur Homes Stock: ​Our stock in Adur is ageing and whilst we 
have a capital programme in place, there is a need to dovetail this more 
closely with our wider development ambitions which will progress in 2019 as 
we develop the HRA programme.  
 

4. Rough Sleeping: ​In recent weeks, whilst we have been successful in 
supporting some of our most vulnerable and entrenched rough sleepers to 
access support and help, there continues to be an obvious presence within 
Worthing Town centre, that presents challenges and can create tensions. 

Future Focus  
1. Working towards Safer Communities: ​The Safer Communities 

Partnership has commissioned a locality review, which will be conducted by 
the Government’s Violence & Vulnerability Unit in the early part of 2019. 
This is a rapid evidence assessment process that will focus on violence and 
vulnerability, as part of the national strategy to tackle serious youth violence. 
 

2. Developing Active Places: ​Following on from the successful Waves Ahead 
Conference and aligned with the work underway as part of our Local Plan 
development, we will be focusing on developing a Sports and Activities 

Strategy for our places and developing local and larger scale initiatives to 
increase activity levels.  
 

3. Supporting everyone to live well: ​We will continue to develop the 
‘Thrive Project” and deepen our plans to build resilience and place 
prevention at the heart of what we do.  
 

4. Continuing to tackle homelessness: ​Deliver our plans for sustainable 
reductions in rough sleeping and improving preventative approaches to 
homelessness will continue. Alongside this we intend to maintain the pace in 
sourcing more affordable options for EA and supporting landlords to work 
collaboratively with the Councils.   
 

5. New Adur Homes developments: ​By April 2019 we intend to have 
commenced work at Albion Street and Cecil Norris House in Adur and have 
designed the next phase of our development programme.  

 
July - December 2018 Progress Report  

 
 

35



36



 

Commitment Activities Tracker 
 
 
 

 
 
   

Overview : last 6 months 
Across our places we have continued to support the stewardship of our natural 
resources, adopting an ambitious sustainability framework and collaborating 
locally on a wide range of projects on sustainable transport, biodiversity, waste 
reduction, water, energy and carbon reduction. The Councils have shown 
leadership to get our own house in order, developing a Travel Action Plan; and 
delivering further energy and carbon reductions (e.g. lighting improvements on 
the Worthing seafront). 
 
Platform Highlights : last 6 months 

1. Leading in Sustainability:​ Adopted “​Sustainable Adur and Worthing” 
demonstrating Council commitment and leadership on sustainability, 
including bold commitments on carbon reduction, an area not 
previously addressed by the Councils.  We have also established 
lunchtime learning sessions for staff to improve professional knowledge 
and understanding of sustainability issues. 

2. Supporting our communities energy efficiency:​ Launched a 3 year 
energy advice program ‘LEAP’ providing a lifeline for local households in 
need, providing home visits, advice and efficiency installations.  

3. Stewarding our Natural Assets:​ Launched Brooklands Park Master 
plan (after receiving over 800 consultation responses). Continued work 
on 2 Heritage Lottery Funding applications. Achieved a further 5 Green 
Flags in our Adur and Worthing parks, refurbishing another three play 
areas to create welcoming, safe play spaces for our communities.  

 
July - December 2018 Progress Report  

 
 

37



 
4. Reducing waste, increasing recycling: ​Initiated a comprehensive 

waste reduction engagement campaign (achieving more than 80,000 
views in a 3 week period) following the Councils decision to move to 
alternate weekly refuse collections to increase recycling. Supporting 
community partners to launch ‘Refill Worthing’ to reduce single use 
plastic waste. 

5. Improving air quality: ​Active partner in the County wide ‘Breathing 
Better’ air quality strategy and action plan, and delivered projects to 
support this strategy, including securing 100% external finance for Adur 
and Worthing’s first rapid electric vehicle chargepoint.  

6. Regional approaches to Energy and Water: ​Established Council 
involvement in Greater Brighton Economic Board Energy and Water 
Plans and ‘South2East’ the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Regional 
Energy Strategy. 

Challenges 
There has been difficulty securing installers to deliver the ongoing solar 
photovoltaic roll out for council buildings. This is due to lack of a capacity in the 
national solar sector due to the huge demand for installations prior to the Feed 
in Tariff end March 2019. This challenge has now been overcome but has 
created delays of a few months to the installation of solar PV at the Shoreham 
Centre.   
 
 

Future Focuses 
The “​Sustainable Adur and Worthing” Framework​ has a variety of activity 
flowing from it including over the next six months: 

● Submit the Stage two HLF funding bids for Parks 2019. 
● Join UK 100 Cities Network and make the pledge to deliver 100% clean 

energy by 2050 (Jan 2019) 
● Launch a water saving service for residents with Southern Water (Jan 

2019) 
● Hold “Plastic Free Council” working group inception meeting (Jan 2019) 
● Launch “EASIT Adur & Worthing” offering discounted travel and 

transport to staff of the Councils and Adur and Worthing businesses 
and other public employers (March 2019) 

● Launch Shoreham-by-Sea Refill scheme (Spring 2019). 
● Consult on Adur Local Plan Energy Supplementary Planning Document 

(Feb 2019) 
● Install a photovoltaic array for Shoreham Centre (20kW) and 

Commerce Way (50kW) (April 2019) 
● Install rapid electric vehicle chargepoint in Lancing (March 2019) 
● Finalise and deliver the Adur & Worthing Councils Travel Action Plan 

2019. 
● Explore options for an energy smartgrid for Worthing Civic Centre. 
● Develop and adopt the Adur & Worthing Local Cycling & Walking 

Infrastructure Plan (Summer 2019). 
● Develop an A&WC Carbon Reduction Plan 2019. 

 
July - December 2018 Progress Report  

 
 

38



 

Commitment Tracker 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Overview : last 6 months 
A significant amount of digital work has come to fruition in the last six months, with 
several major services launched.  Our ‘SameRoom” service design methodology has 
helped us approach difficult challenges of homelessness and loneliness differently, 
creating much stronger partnership working with others.  We are also seeing 
successes in commercial income growth.  There is a significant financial challenge ahead 
which will require a strong strategic response.  Our support services continue to 
support ​Platforms for Our Places​ ambitions effectively, and will need to continue to 
re-configure, transform and attract new talent and skills to help achieve our goals. 
 
Platform Highlights : last 6 months 

1. Developing our Commercial Capacity: ​Successful commercial income 
growth across Environmental Services and in Building Control, e.g. fire risk 
safety assessments to commercial clients. We have developed digital self 
service for clinical, bulky, street scene and missed bins with 40% of requests 
now through the digital channel and a fully automated ordering of clinical waste 
collections using Amazon Alexa technology. We have also started a 
commercial modelling and marketing exercise in waste services, with a view to 
roll out of learning and methods to other commercial services 

2. New approaches to Service Design: ​Delivered specialist “SameRoom” 
service design support to key projects including preventing homelessness and 
loneliness, creating strong multi-agency working and delivering real outcomes, 
and launching a public blog: ​sameroom.adur-worthing.gov.uk 

 
July - December 2018 Progress Report  

 
 
 

39

http://sameroom.adur-worthing.gov.uk/introducing-sameroom/


 

3. Digital Solutions for improved customer services:​ Launched an end to 
end housing repairs app providing tenants with online appointment booking 
and regular progress updates, with customer satisfaction at 90% satisfied or 
very satisfied. We have launched online accounts and e-billing in Revenues and 
Benefits, with further online services planned and plain english work on letter 
templates underway. We have also stabilised the telephony system following 
switch of managed service provider. 

4. Improving our Estate Management: ​Digital asset management systems 
developed for Estates and Compliance, helping improve management of our 
property estate 

5. Managing and Supporting our people: ​ We are progressing with a 
significant HR policy review with further policies on track for change.  We 
have delivered ‘Leading Quality Conversations’ training to all managers 
alongside a new 1:1 process to support and develop our staff. A new staff 
induction handbook has been designed through a working group of managers 
across the organisation. We are currently trailing a prototype HR data 
dashboard allowing analysis to support workforce planning and sickness 
management, and an easy to use annual leave app. Launched Well@Work to 
support staff wellbeing, providing a range of activities to staff such as pilates, 
mindfulness and singing. 

6. Improving our Strategic Finance Management:​ Reviewed our financial 
services through an LGA Peer Review and developed an improvement action 
plan. 

Challenges 
1. Meeting the financial challenge:​ particularly forward planning for the 

2020/21 following budget decisions at West Sussex County Council. 

2. Attracting the right people: ​Recruitment to specialist roles such as building 
surveying, digital/ICT and legal. 

3. Responding to our Customers: ​Driving down call wait times in the contact 
centre through digital self service and opening up other new contact channels 

Future Focuses 
1. Modernising our financial strategy and systems:​ Undertaking a in-depth 

analysis of the Councils’ financial positions and development of longer term 
financial strategies, with support from external specialists.  This will run in 
parallel to modernisation of financial systems including Financial Regulations, IT 
systems, processes and budget manager training. 

2. Improving our commercial acumen ​through business coaching offered to 
managers and finance business partners. 

 

 
July - December 2018 Progress Report  

 
 
 

40



 

3. Improving services to our customer and partners:​ The ​“Effortless” 
customer services programme will be a major change programme in 2019 
building on the successes of the digital platform strategy.  

A new look ‘beta’ website will be launched to help make the rapidly growing 
set of digital self services much easier and simpler to access.  ​“Effortless”​ will 
aim to overhaul how customer contacts are managed, and open up and 
promote new channels such as web chat and social media, while improving 
telephone and face to face support. 

Using £80,000 funding secured from the Government’s Local Digital Fund for a 
community service directory project (one of only 16 selected projects 
nationwide).  

The Revenues and Benefits Service will continue its transformation through 
digital along with simplified written communications with customers, and an 
exploration of process automation technologies. 

4. Managing the Councils’ Assets: ​Improved asset management and 
maintenance through a specialist review of the current delivery model, a 
strategic asset review, procurement and contract improvements and a 
restructure of the Technical Services team. 

 

 

5. Property Investment Strategy; ​work will continue to ensure that 
we develop and maintain an active and balanced property investment 
strategy that makes a positive contribution to the Councils’ medium 
term financial strategies. 

 
July - December 2018 Progress Report  

 
 
 

41



42



 

Commitment Tracker 
 
 
 

 
 
   

Overview : last 6 months 
The Councils continue to develop our role as leaders in our places. As 
highlighted across all five Platforms, the Councils are actively working with 
partners to identify and develop opportunities for our communities to thrive. 
In addition to our core responsibility to supporting local democracy, we have 
invested to improve how we communicate and engage with our communities.  

Platform Highlights : last 6 months 
1. Sharing our Stories locally and beyond: ​the Councils have 

effectively spread the stories of our places locally and beyond with 
regular articles in national sector press. Our seven 
(​#ourstoriesyourcouncils) ​bloggers having a reach of over 104,000, and 
we have more than 20 front page articles in local, regional and trade 
press. 

2. Reframing local partnership: ​Work has begun to reframe how we 
engage the local strategic partners through the Local Partnerships 
Forum and the Waves Ahead Conferences in Spring and Autumn. The 
Autumn Conference saw over 60 attendees designing how we can 
achieve more active and connected communities. This will feed into 
the development of the Councils’ Activities Strategy.  

3. Regional Leadership: ​The Councils continue to play an active role in 
working with regional partners within the County and Greater 
Brighton City Region. Shaping the development of the Greater 
Brighton Economic Board’s five-year vision, the Local Enterprise 

 
January - June 2018 Progress Report  

 
 

43



 
Partnerships ‘Gatwick 360’ strategy and a number of other 
county-wider strategic initiatives.  

4. Developing our elected members: ​We have continued to aid the 
development needs for our Elected Members, with 11 Member 
Training events being held  during this period, on a range of topics 
from Member Induction to case work and treasury management. 

Challenges 
1. Capacity of our partners: ​ Of particular current concern are 

funding reductions in the WSCC budget proposals (and the 
consequences for our communities). We will continue to provide 
critical challenge and lead where appropriate in creating solutions for 
our places.  Given the multiple demands on the County Council we 
may need to find new ways of retaining their focus on strategic joint 
activities for the benefit of Adur and Worthing.  

Future Focuses 
1. Foster Partnerships: ​We want to continue to develop the 

relationship with strategic partners among our community, businesses 
and the public sector. This is particularly important to respond to the 
needs of our business community, working closely with health partners 
and improve the stewarding our natural resources.  

 

 

2. Supporting our democratic processes:​ To ensure our back-office 
systems are effective to support our Members, we will be 
Implementing Modern.Gov. This is a secure system that will improve 
the democratic experience for our communities, members and 
officers, making it much more streamlined, accessible and efficient.  

3. Brexit Preparedness:​ As we approach the 29 March the Councils 
will be ramping up our efforts to prepare for the United Kingdom’s 
withdrawal from the European Union, whatever form it comes in. 

4. Future Strategic Direction: ​Work will begin on evaluating, 
researching and identifying the future strategic considerations the 
Councils may wish to take forward in ​Platforms for our Places’ 
successor.  (January 2019 onwards).  

 
January - June 2018 Progress Report  

 
 

44



 

 

Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
21 March 2019 

Agenda Item 10 

 
Key Decision [No] 

 
Ward(s) Affected:N/A 

 

 

Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2019/20    

 

Report by the Director for Digital and Resources 

 

Executive Summary 

 

1. Purpose  

 
1.1 This report outlines progress with the work contained in the Joint Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee (JOSC) Work Programme for 2018/19 and requests that the 
Committee consider its Work Programme for 2019/20.  

 

 

2. Recommendations 

 

2.1 That the progress in implementing the Work Programme for 2018/19 be 
noted;  
 
2.2 That the Committee consider and confirm its Work Programme for 
2019/20; and  
 
2.3 That the proposed JOSC Work Programme for 2019/20 be reported to the 
Adur and Worthing Council meetings in April 2019 for approval.   

 

 

  

45

Agenda Item 10



3.  Context 

 

3.1 The current JOSC Work Programme for 2018/19 has been reviewed at each  

meeting during the Municipal Year. Paragraph 9.2 of the Joint Overview and  

Scrutiny Procedure Rules, which form part of the Councils’ Constitutions and  

are binding on all Members, states that the work programme will be approved  

by both Councils. A report must be taken to each full Council on an annual  

basis seeking Councils’ approval of the JOSC Work Programme for the  

forthcoming year. Any changes to the Work Programme are reported mid year  

and for 18/19 this was done in December 2018.   

  

4.  Issues for consideration 

 

4.1 The Committee has received regular update reports on the implementation of  

the Work Programme at each meeting throughout the Municipal Year with the  

last of these being at the meeting on 24 January 2019. A copy of the 2018/19  

Work Programme is attached as Appendix A to this report for reference.   

 

4.2 A draft Work Programme for 2019/20 has now been produced for the  

Committee to consider which is set out in the Appendix B to this report.  

 

4.3 The Committee is requested to consider the draft Work Programme and  

consider if any further items are required to be added to the Work  

Programme. During the Municipal Year, items may be added to the JOSC  

Work Programme, where appropriate. Requests for additional matters to be  

included in the Work Programme will initially be considered by the Joint  

Chairpersons in accordance with the criteria and they will make their  

recommendations to the next JOSC for consideration and determination  

following receipt of the Officer report.  Consideration should also be given to  

the capacity of the Committee and resources available when considering  

further Work Programme items.  

 

4.4 As part of the consultation for this report, all Members of the Council have  

been consulted to see if they have any other items/issues that they would like  

to be added to the Work Programme. The detail of any issues which have  

been suggested by Councillors are set out in the Appendix C to the report.    

Items for the Work Programme need to be chosen guided by how closely they  

align with the Councils’ Strategic objectives, how the Committee can influence  

the outcomes and also general value and outcomes in accordance with the  

(PAPER criteria) - (P) - Public Interest, (A) - Ability to Change, (P) -  

Performance , (E) - Extent and (R) - Replication. An assessment of each  

request has been undertaken, the suggestions discussed with the Joint  

Chairpersons and their recommendations are included with the detail of the   

request set out in Appendix C.  

46



 

5.0 Engagement and Consultation 
 
5.1 The JOSC Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen have been consulted on the  
proposals contained in this report.  

 

6.0 Financial Implications 

 

6.1 There are no direct financial implications to consider within this report. 

 

7.0 Legal 
 

7.1 Under Section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Councils have the  

power to do anything to facilitate or which is conducive or incidental to the  

discharge of any of their functions.  

 
7.2 Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 provides a Local Authority to do 
anything that individuals generally may do (subject to any current restrictions or 
limitations prescribed in existing legislation).  

 
7.3 Section 3(1) of the Local Government Act 1999 (LGA 1999) contains a  

general duty on a best value authority to make arrangements to secure  
continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised,  
having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

 
7.4 Paragraph 9.2 of the current Joint Overview and Scrutiny Procedure 
Rules, which form part of the Councils’ Constitutions and are binding on all 
Members, states that the Work Programme will be approved by both Councils. 
A report must be taken to both Councils on an annual basis seeking both 
Councils’ approval of the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee work 
programme for the forthcoming year.  

 

Background Papers 

None. 

 

Officer Contact Details:-  

Mark Lowe  
Scrutiny and Risk Officer,  
Town Hall,   
Worthing, 
West Sussex 
Tel 01903 221009 
mark.lowe@adur-worthing.gov.uk 

 
Sustainability & Risk Assessment 

 
1. Economic 
 

47



 Matter considered and no direct issues identified. 

 

2. Social 

  

2.1  Social Value 

 

 Matter considered and no direct issues identified. 

 

2.2  Equality Issues 

 
 Matter considered and no direct issues identified. 
 

2.3 Community Safety Issues (Section 17) 
 
 Matter considered and no direct issues identified. 
 
2.4 Human Rights Issues 

 
 Matter considered and no direct issues identified. 
 
3.  Environmental 
 
 Matter considered and no direct issues identified. 
 
4.  Governance 
 
 Matter considered and no direct issues identified. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX A  
 
Existing Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2018/19 
 

Date of Items for Report Author Executive Members to Change to original 

48



meeting discussion be  invited Work Programme?  

21 June 
2018 

Annual JOSC 
report for 2017/18 
 
Air Quality - 
Response from 
West Sussex 
Director of Public 
Health 

Joint Chairmen of 
JOSC 
 
 
Director for Digital and 
Resources  
 

N/A 
 
 
N/A 
 
 

No  
 
 
No  

26 July 
2018 

Attendance by 
Southern Water to 
speak about 
investment works 

to improve 
bathing water 
quality in 
Worthing in 
particular and 
across Adur & 
Worthing more 
broadly. This will 
include an 
update on 
investment 
works at the 
East Worthing 
works, plus a 
brief on 
proposed 
investment plans 
for the area for 
2020 and 
beyond. This 

follows the sewage 
spill incident in 
July 2017  
 
Review of the 
Public Space 
Protection Orders 
(PSPO’s) - Bi-
annual update 
 
 
Effectiveness of 
parking and road 
traffic enforcement 
policy in Adur and 
Worthing  
 
Joint Revenue 
Outturn report 
2017/18 
 
 
Outline Budget 
Strategy 2019/20  
 
 
 
Report from the 

 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Director for 
Communities 
 
 
 
 
 
Director for Digital & 
Resources/Head of 
Customer & Digital 
 
 
 
Director for Digital & 
Resources/Chief 
Financial Officer 
 
 
Director for Digital & 
Resources/Chief 
Financial Officer 
 
 

 
Adur Executive Member 
for the Environment, 
Worthing Executive 
Member for 
Regeneration. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive Members for 
Environment & 
Wellbeing 
 
 
 
 
Executive Members for 
Environment 
 
 
 
 
Executive Members for 
Resources 
 
 
 
II 
 
 
 
 

 
No 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
No  
 
 
 
 
 
 
No 
 
 
 
 
 
No 
 
 
 
 
No  
 
 
 
 

49



JOSC 
Consultations 
review Working 
Group 
 
 
Report on possible 
dog fouling and 
litter enforcement 
scheme 

Chairman of the 
Working Group 
 
 
 
 
 
Director for 
Communities 
 
 

N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive Members for 
Wellbeing 
 

Yes. Moved from 21 
June 2018 meeting 
date. 
 
 
 
 
New item added 
following public 
scrutiny request. 

 
20 
September  
2018 

 
Review of the 
Progress in 
delivering the 
activities in 
Platforms for our 
Places - 
Questioning Chief 
Executive 
 
Annual interviews 
with Council 
Leaders 
 
Progress report on 
the implementation 
of the outcomes 
from the Youth 
Engagement 
scrutiny report 
 

 
Chief Executive 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Director for Digital & 
Resources  
 
 
Director for 
Communities/Head of 
Wellbeing 
 

 
Adur & Worthing 
Executive Members 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Leaders 
 
 
 
Executive Members for 
Wellbeing 
 

 
No  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
No 
 
 
 
No 

18 October 
2018 

Crime and 
Disorder scrutiny 
themed session - 
Interview with 
Chairman of Safer 
Communities 
Partnership  
 
Health Scrutiny 
themed session - 
Interview with 
Chairman of the 
West Sussex 
Health and Adult 
Social Care 
Committee 
(HASC) on the 
work of the 
Committee and the 
impact on Adur 
and Worthing  
 

 Executive Members for 
Wellbeing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive Members for 
Wellbeing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

No 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
No 

50



 
29 
November 
2018 

 
Adur, Worthing 
and Joint Outline 5 
year forecast and 
savings proposals 
- Executive 
Member 
interviews. 
 
Review of 
Consultations - 
Response from the 
Joint Strategic 
Committee 
 
Report on the 
review of the 
potential loss of 
public car parking 
spaces in Worthing 
given the closure of 
Teville Gate and 
future 
development 
planned at Grafton 
Car Park. 

 
Director for Digital & 
Resources/Chief 
Financial Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
Director for the 
Economy 

 
Adur and Worthing 
Executive Members 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
Worthing Executive 
Member for 
Regeneration and 
Worthing Leader.  

 
No 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Yes. New item added 
for consideration of the 
response from the 
Joint Strategic 
Committee.  
 
 
Yes. Item has been on 
the pending list for a 
while awaiting the 
report to the Joint 
Strategic Committee 
which reported on 6  
November.  

24 January 
2019  

Review of the 
Public Space 
Protection Orders 
(PSPO’s) - Bi-
annual update. 
 
Worthing Budget 
Estimates 18/19 
and setting of 
2018/19 Council 
Tax  
 
 
 
Progress report on 
the work of 
Officers to deal 
with  Housing 
issues 
 
 
 
 

Director for 
Communities 
 
 
 
 
Director for Digital & 
Resources/Chief 
Financial Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
Director for 
Communities/Head of 
Housing 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Executive Members for 
Environment & 
Wellbeing 
 
 
 
Worthing Executives  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive Members for 
Customer Services 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

No 
 
 
 
 
 
Yes.Now only 
Worthing Budget 
scrutiny. Adur Council 
in July 2018 agreed to 
remove the Adur 
Budget scrutiny from 
the Work Programme.  
 
No. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
7 February 
2019 (New 
meeting 
date) 

 
Interview with 
Police and Crime 
Commissioner 

 
Director for Digital & 
Resources 

 
Executive Members for 
Wellbeing 

 
Yes. Item added at the 
request of JOSC.  

21 March 
2019 

Review of the 
Progress in 
delivering the 
activities in 
Platforms for our 
Places - 
Questioning Chief 
Executive 

Chief Executive 
Director for Digital & 
Resources 
 
 
 
 
 

Adur and Worthing 
Executives 
 
 
 
 
 
 

No.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

51



 
Leader interviews 
 
 
Review of the Dog 
Warden service - 
Littering and Dog 
fouling issues. 
 
 
Annual Work 
Programme setting 
2019/20 

 
Director for Digital & 
Resources 
 
Director for 
Communities/Head of 
Wellbeing 
 
 
 
Director for Digital & 
Resources 

 
Leaders 
 
 
Executive Members for 
Wellbeing 
 
 
 
 
N/A 

 
No. 
 
 
Yes. Item added at the 
request of JOSC in 
connection with the 
public scrutiny 
request.  
 
No. 

Date to be 
confirmed 

Major Projects 
being undertaken 
in partnership with 
West Sussex 
County Council - 
Update  
 
 
 
 
 
Report from the 
JOSC Working 
Group on Night 
Time economy 
 
 
Presentation from 
Southern Water on 
bathing water 
quality issues 
(Early part of 
2020) 
 
 
Report from the 
Working Group on 
the review of the 
procedures for 
dealing with 
traveller  
incursions in Adur 
and Worthing and 
use of the transit 
site 
 
Review of 
Corporate Assets  
 
 
 
 
 
West Sussex Air 
quality Strategy  
 
 
 
Report from the 
JOSC 
Effectiveness of 
OSC’s Working 

Director for the 
Economy 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chairman of the 
Working Group 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Head of Major 
Projects & 
Investment/Director 
for Economy 
 
 
 
Director for 
Communities/ West 
Sussex County 
Council 
 
Chairman of the 
Working Group 
 
 

Executive Members for 
Regeneration and 
relevant West Sussex 
County Council Cabinet 
Members  
 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
Adur Executive Member 
for the Environment, 
Worthing Executive 
Member for 
Regeneration, 
Executive Members for 
Wellbeing 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Relevant Executive 
Members 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive Members for 
Wellbeing 
 
 
 
N/A  
 
 
 

No 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Yes. Item added to 
Work Programme 
following a scrutiny 
request received from 
a Councillor.  
 
Yes. Item added to the  
Work Programme at 
the request of JOSC.  
 
 
 
 
 
Yes. Item added to 
Work Programme 
following a scrutiny 
request received from 
a Councillor.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
Yes.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Yes. Item added at the 
request of JOSC. 
 
 
 
Yes. Item moved back 
from 21 June.   
 
 

52



Group 
 
Report from 
Transport Strategy 
Working Group 
 

 
 
Chairman of the 
Working Group 

 
 
N/A 

 
 
Yes. Item moved back 
from 21 March.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX B 
 

53



Proposed Draft Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 
2019/20 
 

Date of 
meeting 

Items for discussion Report Author Executive Members to be  
invited 

20 June 
2019 
 
 

Annual JOSC report for 
2018/19 
 
Report from the JOSC 
Working Group on evening 
and Night Time economy 
 
Report from the Working 
Group on the review of the 
procedures for dealing with 
traveller  incursions in Adur 
and Worthing and use of the 
transit site.  
 

Joint Chairmen of JOSC 
 
 
Chairman of the Working 
Group 
 
 
Chairman of the Working 
Group 

N/A 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
N/A 

25 July 
2019 

 
Joint Revenue Outturn report 
2018/19 
 
 
Outline Budget Strategy 
2019/20  
 
 

 
Director for Digital & 
Resources/Chief Financial 
Officer 
 
Director for Digital & 
Resources/Chief Financial 
Officer 
 
 

 
Executive Members for 
Resources 
 
 
II 
 
 
 

 
19 
September  
2019 

 
Review of the Progress in 
delivering the activities in 
Platforms for our Places - 
Questioning Chief Executive 
 
West Sussex Air quality 
Strategy  
 
 

 
Chief Executive 
 
 
 
 
Director for Communities/ 
West Sussex County 
Council 
 

 
Adur & Worthing Executive 
Members 
 
 
 
Executive Members for 
Wellbeing 
 

17  
October 
2019 

Annual interviews with 
Council Leaders 
 
 

Director for Digital & 
Resources  
 

Leaders 
 

54



 
21 
November 
2019 

 
Adur and Worthing and Joint 
Outline 5 year forecast and 
savings proposals - 
Executive Member 
interviews. 

 
Director for Digital & 
Resources/Chief Financial 
Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Adur and Worthing Executive 
Members 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

30 January 
2020  

 
Worthing Budget Estimates 
20/21 and setting of 2020/21  
Council Tax  
 
Presentation from Southern 
Water on bathing water 
quality issues (Early part of 
2020) 
 

 
Director for Digital & 
Resources/Chief Financial 
Officer 
 
N/A 
 

 
Worthing Executives  
 
 
 
Adur Executive Member for the 
Environment, Worthing 
Executive Member for 
Regeneration, Executive 
Members for Wellbeing 

19 March 
2020 

Review of the Progress in 
delivering the activities in 
Platforms for our Places - 
Questioning Chief Executive 
 
Leader interviews 
 
 
Annual Work Programme 
setting 2019/20 
 

Chief Executive 
 
 
 
 
Director for Digital & 
Resources 
 
Director for Digital & 
Resources 

Adur and Worthing Executives 
 
 
 
 
Leaders 
 
 
N/A 

 
Date to be 
confirmed 

 
Major Projects being 
undertaken in partnership 
with West Sussex County 
Council - Update  
 
Review of Corporate Assets  
 
 
 
Regular updates on the 
delivery of the Housing 
Strategy - Review of 
progress 
 
 
Worthing Theatres - Review 
of the operation of the new 
contract  
 
Report from the JOSC 
Effectiveness of OSC’s 
Working Group 
 
 
Report from the Working 
Group reviewing recycling 
 
 
 
 

 
Director for the Economy 
 
 
 
 
Head of Major Projects & 
Investment/Director for 
Economy 
 
Director for 
Communities/Head of 
Housing 
 
 
 
Director for the Economy 
 
 
 
Chairman of the Working 
Group 
 
 
 
Chairman of the Working 
Group 

 
Executive Members for 
Regeneration and relevant 
West Sussex County Council 
Cabinet Members  
 
Relevant Executive Members 
 
 
 
Executive Members for 
Customer Services 
 
 
 
 
Worthing Executive Member 
for Customer Services 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
N/A 

55



 

 
 
Note - A progress report on the delivery of the work contained in the Work Programme will be presented to each 

meeting.  
 
All timings are provisional and subject to change in agreement with the Joint Chairmen and the Committee.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
           APPENDIX C 

56



Scrutiny request   
Issue - Performance of Adur Homes when dealing with tenant requests for repairs and 

maintenance.   

Request from - Councillor Les Alden 

Public interest -  Tenants and Councillors are concerned about response times and the 

difficulty of communicating with housing staff on repairs/maintenance issues.   

Score = High 

Ability to change -  Ability to change -  There is a need to establish better lines of 

communication with tenants. A review as to whether staff levels are adequate.  

Score = High 

Performance -  The review is about the poor performance. 

Score = High 

Extent -  There are c. 2500 council tenancies.  

Score = High 

Replication - It may be under review at officer level (Internal Audit) but a review at JOSC level 

would be effective.   

Score = High  

Expected Outcomes - Outcomes expected - Improved service to tenants. Greater tenant 

satisfaction. 

Does the proposed review link with the Council strategic 
objectives or does the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
have the ability to influence and/or add value on the subject? 
 
Platform 2 - Our social economies - Commitment 2.3 - Supporting and sustaining Adur District 
Council Housing Service as a successful and efficient business.   

How could this review be undertaken? JOSC/JOSC Working Group 

Recommendations from Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Chairmen/Vice-Chairmen:-  
 
That the Scrutiny request be supported and a report be submitted to JOSC in Summer 2019 for 
JOSC to assess the recommendations/proposed action plan from the Audit of repairs and 
maintenance and to decide if there is a need for any further Scrutiny involvement at that stage. 

 

57



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 Review of Dog Warden Service
	8 Interview with the Leaders
	9 Delivering Platforms for our Places - Progress Report - July to December 2018
	JOSC - 2019.03.21 - Agenda item 9 - Platforms for our Places annex
	Item 5 - Platforms for our Places Progress Report
	Item 5 - Platforms App 1
	Item 5 - Platforms App 2
	Item 5 - Platforms App 3
	Item 5 - Platforms App 4
	Item 5 - Platforms App 5
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page


	10 Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2019/20

